
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
 

AGENDA
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING

January 16, 2013 – 9:00 A.M.

  

Agenda Item Action Page Time 

 

Meeting Location: Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum ST SE, Olympia, WA 98504 

Committee Meetings ...............................................................................................  ........................  7:30-8:30 
 
1) ADMINISTRATION .............................................................................................  ....................... 3 ........... 9:00 

a) Call to Order 
b) Welcome and Introductions ........................................................................  ........................    
c) Approve Agenda: Janea Eddy........................................................... Action .................. 1 
d) November 2 Meeting Minutes: Janea Eddy  ..................................... Action .................. 5 
e) December 4 Meeting Minutes: Janea Eddy ...................................... Action .................. 7 
f) 2013 Board Meeting Dates: Janea Eddy ........................................... Action ................. 15 

 
2) COMMITTEE REPORT .......................................................................................  ..................... 17 ........... 9:15 

a) Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein ......................................................  .............. verbal 
b) Communication Committee: Kathryn Gardow ............................................  ...................... 19 
c) Policy Committee: Don Montfort .................................................................  ...................... 21 
a) TA Committee: Steve Stuart .......................................................................  ..................... 23  

i.Technical Assistant Plan: Bruce Lund .......................................... Action ................ 25 
 

3) CONTRACTING ..................................................................................................  ..................... 25 ......... 10:00 
a) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

a. City of Sunnyside: Bruce Lund ................................................... Action ................ 27 
b. City of Toppenish: Bruce Lund ................................................... Action ................ 27 
c. Hideaway Mobile Home Park Update: Steve Dunk ..............................  ............... verbal 

b) Public Works Trust Fund 
d. Grays Harbor County Water District #1: Bruce Lund ................ Action ................ 27 

 
4) Program Development/Implementation Updates ...........................................  .........................  ......... 10:30 

a) 2015 PWTF Terms: Cecilia Gardener ................................................ Action ................ 35 
b) PWB Academy Update: Lynn Kohn............................................................  ............... verbal 

 
5) INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS .................................................................  .........................  ......... 11:00 
  
LUNCH  
Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 11:30 p.m.  
 
 
NEXT MEETING SCHEDULED: February 1, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. – Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525. Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be accessible 
to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151. 



 

2



TAB 1 

Administration 

3



 

4



November 2, 2012 meeting minutes will be emailed Monday, January 10. 

5



 

6



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING NOTES 
December 4, 2012 

Department of Commerce (Olympia, WA) 

Board Members 
Guests Present: Staff Present: 

Present: Absent: 

Stan Finkelstein, Chair Frank Abart Melanie DeLeon, Executive Ethics Board   Myra Baldini 

JC Baldwin  Karen Larkin, Department of Commerce Ann Campbell 

Jerry Cummins  Chris McCord, Department of Health Cindy Chavez 

Tom Fitzsimmons  Julie Parker, Thurston Public Utilities District Terry Dale 

Kathryn Gardow  Cathi Read, Small Communities Initiative Steve Dunk 

Ed Hildreth  Eric Tompkins, Department of Commerce Christina Gagnon 

Scott Hutsell   Cecilia Gardener 

Don Montfort   Isaac Huang 

Mark “Bubba” Scott   Lynn Kohn 

Darwin Smith   John LaRocque 

Steve Stuart   Bruce Lund 

Larry Waters   Jennifer Motteler 

   Rodney Orr 

   Jacki Skaught 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

a) Call to order: Chair Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

b) Introductions: Board members, guests, and staff introduced themselves. 

c) Approve the agenda: Steve Stuart moved to approve the agenda. Seconded by Ed Hildreth.  

ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, 

Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

d) Approval of the November 2, 2012 meeting minutes was deferred to the January 2013 meeting.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a)  Executive Committee, Stan Finkelstein reported: 

• Stan Finkelstein and John LaRocque met with Stan Marshburn, Director of the Office of 

Financial Management (OFM) on November 6, 2012 to discuss the Board’s recommended 

2014 Construction Loan List and the changes the Board approved based on OFM’s request 

to reduce the total amount to $350 million due to budget constraints. Governor elect Inslee 

may have an alternate version. A case was made that there is a high need to address critical 

infrastructure needs; this could be the jobs bill and reducing the list will not allow for growth 

in jobs and the economy. 

• There is currently a budget shortfall of $900 million, plus $1 billion for education   

b)  Communications Committee, Kathryn Gardow reported: 

• The business cards have arrived.  If Board members talk to legislators or are out and 

about on Board business, use these cards.   

7



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

• The draft four page information/education document was available for review. There 

will be more changes will be coming, and it will be ready for the January Board meetings 

with Legislators.  

• The Board’s web page is underway.   

c) Policy Committee, Don Montfort reported:  

• The bylaws are a work in progress. 

� Review underway; will come to full Board when ready; currently mostly 

housekeeping stuff.  Meeting schedule concern: how specific should it be?  

� We have not been in compliance with our own bylaws regarding meeting times.  

� Question whether the committee should develop an annual schedule? Specific, or is 

not specific acceptable?  

• Kathryn Gardow noted she prefers flexible. Ed Hildreth agreed. 

• Stan Finkelstein has a scheduling conflict with Tuesday/Thursday so doesn’t 

want days in bylaws.   

� Committee will continue to work on it.  

• Does the Board want the policy committee to begin analyzing current MOUs, or wait? 

� Stan Finkelstein said that renewing some type of MOU between the Board and the 

agency is critical. Going through this transition, important to have a document 

available and agreed upon as something to use to negotiate when there is some 

sense of what the leadership will be.  

� Committee will work on preliminary documents for the Board to review. 

• Called attention to the Z-Bill (policy bill) in section 4, page 7, and section j; regarding 

refinancing – second paragraph from the top. 

� Kathryn Gardow asked if short term debt is definable. Is it less than 1 year? 

• Stan Finkelstein answered 5 years. 

• Kathryn Gardow asked if they want it to be that. 

• Don Montfort answered that it is pre-construction. It’s broad, included for 

flexibility. 

� Larry Waters asked what “as defined in rule by the Board” meant. 

• Stan Finkelstein explained the rulemaking process.  

• Don Montfort said that the Board must establish WAC for those other cases. 

� Stan Finkelstein asked if this language was added from where they were last 

time. 

• John LaRocque confirmed, and said that this bill is in front of the policy 

group and good to go. Does not have final approval, but the last version is in 

front of OFM, so unless changes were made during meeting it’s ready to go 

in the hopper.  

� Agree to revised language as included in section 4, j: “Or other cases as defined 

in rule by the Board”: Don Montfort moved to agree to the revised language as 

included in section 4, j. Jerry Cummins seconded.  ACTION: Motion approved 

(11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

� Adopt bill as amended since previous meeting including:  no ports, refinance 

language, and including pre-construction for non-traditional, and emergency.  

Tom Fitzsimmons moved to approve the bill with modifications that have been 

8



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

included. Steve Stuart seconded. ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, 

Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, 

Stuart, and Waters). 

d) Technical Assistance Committee:  Steve Stuart briefed the Board on the South West Academy, 

said that it was good learning overall and referred to Chris’s memo.  Discussed draft Technical 

Assistance proposal, and that the committee will bring to the full Board at the next meeting.   

 

CONTRACTING 

a) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)  

1. Hideaway Mobile Home Park (HMHP) 

� Steve Dunk reported that in 2008 the Board issued a contract with the HMHP for a 

DWSRF loan, the client invoiced 90k of 100k, drew down to the last 10% of loan (the 

retainage), as reported in page 35 of the board packet. Steve noted that in November 

2011 staff was informed that HMHP were not able to make their loan payment.  The 

Contracts Administration Unit (CAU) attempted to contact the client with no response 

for several months. In February, CAU sent a letter to the client saying that the 1% loan 

fee was incurring per month and that they needed to pay, but still no return contact.  

Recently the HMHP has contacted CAU and explained that they are filing for bankruptcy. 

Contractors have completed the work on the project but he HMHP has not paid the 

contractors. The contractor has put a lien on the park, and the City of Spokane is 

collecting fees from the park but have no mechanisms in place to pay the loan back. 

Staff recommends that the Board either refer this to the Attorney General to recapture 

the outstanding debt if possible, or to resolve the bankruptcy of this client. The property 

was foreclosed on in 2012. The improvements are part of the HMHP property, not the 

City of Spokane. 

� Darwin Smith asked who owns the park; Steve replied that the contractor owns the 

park. 

� Stan Finkelstein noted the Board paid out $19,000 not accounted for and asked what 

CAU does to monitor dispersal of funds.  Eric Tompkins replied that CAU monitors the 

clients and has documentation that $78,000 was paid to the contractor.  It appears that 

the client incurred the cost of the remainder, but no documentation has been provided 

showing that it was paid to the contractor  

� Kathryn Gardow asked if Myra Baldini had been involved with the project. Myra 

answered that she did a credit rating report, but not as full an analysis as is done now.  

Wells Fargo gave them a credit rating that warranted the loan from DWSRF; the system 

was under a red flag for water contamination.  Staff added terms to the contract for a 

dedicated account but the account was not monitored to ensure it was populated with 

loan repayments.   

� Stan Finkelstein asked how many hookups were on the system. Staff replied that the 

hookups reported have ranged from 650 to 100.  

� Tom Fitzsimmons noted that it sounds like the owner went bankrupt and the Board 

won’t know until it comes out the back end.  Tom recommended the Board get an 

attorney to advocate their position.  

9



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

� Ed Hildreth asked where in line the Board is. Myra answered the PWB is superior but 

Wells Fargo had a loan before the Board, noting that system revenue is the secured loan 

piece, but the City of Spokane is currently receiving the user revenue.   

� Stan Finkelstein asked if anyone has computed the percentage increase in water rates 

per unit if the whole $1 million is amortizing per unit; Myra answered that at the time 

the rent/user fees were sufficient to cover the loan. 

� Stan Finkelstein recommended the Board hands the matter over to the Attorney 

General for further action; Kathryn Gardow moved to refer the matter to the Attorney 

General; Darwin Smith seconded. ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, 

Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

� Darwin Smith asked if the Board should be seeking senior position in loans.  Don 

Montfort noted that this was a choice the Board made to accommodate the clients and 

that this is the first loan to go bad.    

2. Knights of Columbus 

� Bruce Lund reported that the project is 97% complete and they are asking for a 3 month 

extension.  

� Darwin Smith moved to approve staff recommendation for an extension of the closeout 

date to 2/28/13; Scott Hutsell seconded. ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, 

Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and 

Waters). 

3. Webster Hill Water Association 

� Isaac Huang explained the client’s request for temporary relief for this year’s loan 

repayment.  Isaac described how the previous owner of the water system abandoned it 

in 2000 and it became deteriorated, resulting in a Department of Health (DOH) 

compliance order being issued.  Isaac explained that the DWSRF loan was applied for in 

2001 and that in 2007 they completed 19 connections. In September 2012 Thurston 

Public Utility District (PUD) was notified that Webster couldn’t make the payment. The 

PUD was asked to take over the system by DOH and Pierce County and took over 

management in August 2012, not ownership. The PUD is assisting Webster apply for a 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) in order to address long term 

contamination treatment. Isaac noted that Webster has gone into foreclosure and now 

only has three hookups and bacteria contamination requiring chlorination. Isaac 

introduced Julie Parker from the PUD present to answer any questions.  

� Stan Finkelstein asked what the loan is. Isaac explained it was $66,000 with $44,000 

outstanding, explaining that Webster raised rates to $130 per month.    

� Myra Baldini explained that Webster is operating in the red right now. She referred to 

the Affordability Index (AI) in Table 3 in the handout provided to the Board, showing 

rates compared with comparable systems with similar number of connections. $130 per 

month is an AI of 2.35% and not affordable. The community is willing and able to pay 

this in order to repay this loan to make sure that they will be operational in the near 

future with the PUD. Myra explained that originally the client requested to defer only 

one payment but that staff was concerned the client would come back for another 

deferral. Staff is recommending deferral for 3 years. Staff is recommending that 

beginning January 1 2013, the client be required to put the money in a dedicated 

account, getting ready for the payment later and adopt a policy to maintain reserves. 

10



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

Myra noted that a summary of staff’s recommendation is on the first page of the 

handout.  

� Julie Parker from the Thurston County PUD explained the PUD’s involvement beginning 

in 2012 at the request of the Department of Health. Julie explained that the PUD agreed 

to take over management beginning in August 2012 and are collecting payments/debts. 

Julie noted that staff’s proposal for a 3 year deferral is very generous and will enable 

them to get Webster’s financial system in line and stabilize their water system. 

� Don Montfort asked if it is in the contract that the PUD will take over the system. Julie 

Parker answered that it is not in contract, but is in documentation, noting that is their 

policy to not take systems that are not whole or do not have a plan to become whole.  

� Don Montfort asked that if they get whole, is there any inclination to not turn system 

over to the PUD? Julie Parker answered no, noting that the PUD has been working with 

the Board president and a couple of other members of the community on the system’s 

sustainability.  

� Darwin Smith asked about whether there are source issues. Julie Parker answered that 

the contamination is bacterial and they have adequate flow/no source issue. 

� Steve Stuart noted that if the goal is to take over the system, that’s a good goal for the 

Board. Steve asked which action from staff recommendation will get to that outcome, 

asking if the Board could have assurance that the PUD would ultimately take the system 

over. Julie Parker answered that she met with Myra Baldini and that they developed 

option 2 together. Julie explained that she can’t provide further assurances that they 

won’t back up and find another alternative, but she does know that given that they have 

been burned so badly, it’s very unlikely that they will do. The PUD’s track record is that 

they sign contract, the system gets used to it, the PUD takes care of the problems. They 

have had managed systems leave their control, they have systems that have been with 

them since 2008.  

� Darwin Smith asked if the PUD has rate authority on those contracts? Julie Parker 

answered no, explaining that the PUD is in contact with the Board and are advising 

them.  

� Stan Finkelstein said that the PUD could not subsidize this entity. That would be giving 

public funds to private.  

� Ed Hildreth recused himself because he’s a member of Thurston County water.  

� Kathryn Gadrow suggested a one year deferral, and then the interest only for the rest of 

the 3 years, which would keep the system used to paying something and keep them 

connected with the Board. 

� Tom Fitzsimmons said that he finds it intriguing that Thurston PUD is a fee based 

manager of the system and that they have no direct accountability on the loan, noting 

that he would like to see something that makes the PUD more accountable.  

� Stan Finkelstein suggested that the Board could approve the recommendation on the 

condition that Webster makes certain agreements with the PUD.  Stan asked if that has 

that been done before with the PUD, Julie Parker answered no.  

� Don Montfort said that the implication is that Thurston PUD is profiting from the 

situation. Looking at the handout and comparing fee to amount spent, there’s not much 

cushion. Trying to condition contract terms with a client based on performance from 

someone else seems kind of dicey. Asking Thurston PUD to take responsibility for 

someone else’s loan, it doesn’t seem like if he was on that commission, he would do it.  

11



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

� Darwin Smith said that the Board is not going to get the PUD to agree, noting that 

should the system decide to forgo the PUD’s management, they either bring the loan 

back to bear as it currently is, or they have to have another plan.  

� Tom Fitzsimmons clarified that he is trying to give the PUD a tool, suggesting the Board 

could condition the water system to sign a ten year agreement with the PUD, if the PUD 

is willing to do so, in order to get a better stability around the water system and enable 

the PUD to be more successful.  

� Chris McCord with the Department of Health said that the intent is for the PUD to take 

over ownership but that cannot happen until the water system is viable.  

� Stan Finkelstein asked what the cost of making the system viable will be. Julie Parker 

answered it is probably close to half a million dollars. 

� Steve Stuart noted that he would like to see a structured contractual arrangement that 

moves towards the transfer of ownership.  

� Don Montfort moved to table the discussion until after lunch. Larry Waters seconded. 

ACTION: Motion approved (9-1). (Baldwin, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). Jerry Cummins voted no, Ed Hildreth recused. 

 

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 

Public Hearing on Loan Fee for Program Year 2013 Loan Program 

� Cecilia Gardener referred to page 43 of the packet with the WAC identifying 

requirements for a public hearing for the drinking water loan fee, noting that no 

changes are being recommended from last year.  

� Stan Finkelstein asked if anyone was present to comment. No one identified themselves. 

� Darwin Smith moved to close the hearing; JC Baldwin seconded.  ACTION: Motion 

approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

� Darwin Smith moved to approve the recommended loan fee, JC Baldwin seconded. 

ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, 

Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

 

FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES 

2014 Public Works Trust Fund Construction Loan List Update 

� John LaRocque reviewed the current status of the 2014 recommended construction loan 

list and the governor’s directive to reduce the total amount for the 2014 loan list to 

$350. John suggested two options to achieve the reduction; option 1 – reduces the loan 

limit per jurisdiction to $10 million and option 2 -  reduces the loan limit per jurisdiction 

to $6.3 million, as detailed in the handout provided to the Board.  

� Steve Stuart asked if a letter was sent on behalf of the Board to the Governor; John 

LaRocque answered no, explaining that a meeting took place with Stan Marshburn, 

Director of the Office of Financial Management instead. 

� Kathryn Gardow said she assumes Water System Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program 

(WSARP) and Growth Management (GMA) line items are grants, asking whether the 

GMA funding would go to Commerce. John answered in the affirmative.  

� Don Montfort stated that the Board’s recommendation does not have to be the same as 

OFM’s request and could be framed that the original recommendation is the 

recommendation with additional information provided.  

12



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

� Stan Finkelstein asked if the $350 million in the proposal assumed acceleration of the 

fund. John LaRocque answered yes, noting that this does not consume all the resources 

the Board could have and use, using acceleration.  

� Karen Larkin said that the $100 million cash diverted to the state general fund is equal 

to $400 million in acceleration. 

� Don Montfort said that the Board has already decided, they decided on that loan list, 

and it seems like the Board’s decision was to have staff advocate for that original list. 

John LaRocque answered that the Board works for the Governor and that staff has to 

take the $350 million list back to them as requested.  

� Tom Fitzsimmons noted that he is hearing a path where OFM is saying ‘send us the 

Board’s list, however, we would also like your recommendation on what we could do to 

get that list to $350 million.’ Tom suggested the Board could frame the $350 list as the 

Board’s suggestion for how to get to $350 would be to cut off projects with a certain 

start date and dollar amount.   

� Steve Stuart suggested that for consistency a $6.3 million cap makes sense.   

� Kathryn Gadrow asked if the Board is in jeopardy of losing money. John responded that 

yes, in second year the Board is vulnerable, noting that staff will be bringing the Board 

recommendations for the upcoming 2015 cycle soon.   

� Kathryn Gadrow suggested adding a column in the four pager to address the governor’s 

version and the Board’s recommendation. John LaRocque answered that they may need 

to ask the governor for permission to do a compare and contrast.  Stan Finkelstein asked 

what happens on Jan 17 when Inslee submits his budget which may deviate from 

Governor Gregoire’s budget? Kathryn Gadrow answered that the four pager will be 

dated; Stan Finkelstein suggested that they go with an additional page as an insert.  

� Karen Larkin said that in the House Government Committee discussion on growth 

management, the public works assistance account came up five times, noting that the 

legislators are aware of the cuts, and all the speakers were advocating against taking it.  

� John LaRocque said that CERB is going to be able to get $20 million of its own resource 

base using the acceleration model so the Board does not need to ask for base funding 

for CERB, but maybe to add to their commitment to really recharge their resources 

base.  

� Ann Campbell explained that the list provided represents who would be impacted by 

reducing the loan amount. 

� ACTION: Don Montfort moved to submit a $350 million loan list with a $6.3 million per 

jurisdiction loan cap to the Governor’s office. Larry Waters seconded.  

� Don Montfort clarified that the motion is to give OFM the information on what would 

happen to the recommended loan list with a $6.3 million loan cap at $350 million total 

using the construction start date as a prioritization. ACTION: Motion approved (10-1) 

(Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and 

Waters). Kathryn Gardow voted no. 

 

ETHICS TRAINING:  Presentation given by Melanie deLeon, Executive Director, Executive Ethics Board 

 

Webster Hill Water Association 

13



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

� Don Montfort noted that the Board is looking for responsible fund management 

and would like the utility obtaining sustainability and financial success through 

professional and efficient management, hopefully by a public entity. Don 

proposed the following conditions: 

• Borrower agrees to maintain contract management for the life of the 

loan or repayment of it, whichever comes first. 

• Borrower agrees to report annually to long-term contract management 

plan. They will have to be concerned with a permanent solution to their 

problems 

• Borrower agrees to set rates according to the best management 

practices according to the contract manager.  

• Maintain contract management, report annually on long-term contract 

management program, best management practices as per the PUD. 

Don Montfort moved to agree generally with these conditions along with option 2 of staff 

recommendation. Darwin Smith seconded. ACTION: Motion approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, 

Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters). 

 

PWTF Pre-Construction Program Recommended List 

� Terry Dale presented the recommended pre-construction project list and 

provided a handout to the Board. Terry clarified that pre-construction is an 

open cycle with removal of the exception for 2012 applicants and is on a first-

come, first-served basis. Terry noted that there are three applicants that will 

utilize all resources and staff would like to allow Wapato to use remaining 

resources of $14,000 to complete their process.   

 

Larry Waters moved to approve staff recommendation, Darwin Smith seconded. ACTION: Motion 

approved (11-0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, 

Stuart, and Waters). 

 

Stan Finkelstein adjourned the meeting.  

14



 

 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
2013 Schedule of Regular Meetings 

January 16, 2013 Board Meeting 

 
 
DATE:  January 11, 2013 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Cecilia Gardener, Policy and Program Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed meeting dates for 2013 
 

 
The Public Works Board will be holding regularly scheduled meetings on the following dates at 
9:00 a.m.  
 

• January 16, 2013 

o Legislative meetings  

• February 1, 2013 

• March 1, 2013 

o Approve Contract Boilerplate 

o Launch 2015 PWTF Construction Cycle 

• April 5, 2013 

• May 3, 2013 

o End of Legislative Session 

• June 7, 2013 

o Policy Retreat 

• July 12, 2013 

o DWSRF Tier One List Approval 

• August 2, 2013 

o 2015 PWTF Loan List Approval 

• September 6, 2013 

o DWSRF Tier Two List Approval 

• October 4, 2013 

• November 1, 2013 

• December 6, 2013 

o Public Hearing for DWSRF Loan Fee 

o Approve Loan Terms for 2015 PWTF Construction Cycle 

 

 

15



 

16



TAB 2 

Committee Report 

17



 

18



PWB Communications Committee Meeting 
12‐4‐2012 
 

 

Date:  January 10, 2013 

To:  Public Works Board 

From:  Cindy Chavez, Board Staff 

Subject:  PWB Communications Committee Notes for December 4, 2012 

7:30‐8:45 

Attendees: 

Board Members      Staff 

Kathryn Gardow      Rodney Orr 

Ed Hildreth         Cindy Chavez 

Scott Hutsell       Cecilia Gardner 

The November 2, 2012 meeting notes and the Agenda for December 2, 2012 meeting were approved. 

Communication Document: The 4 page Communications document was reviewed and changes were 

suggested.  Staff will make the necessary changes and send the document out for review via email. 

Web Site: Rodney Orr presented the latest version of the specs for the website and indicated his 

intentions to have the basic form viewable at the end of the month. Then staff will work on getting the 

information to populate the different tabs. Rodney will be meeting with the Rebecca Stillings, Commerce 

lead on the SharePoint project in Commerce as to exactly what the Commerce IS Department is willing to 

support. The project is still on target to be completed by March, 2013. The Portal for the next loan list was 

discussed and Rodney commented that SharePoint was not ready for the interface so this will need to 

happen thru PWEB.  

Social Media: Social Media Policy was discussed and the biggest concern for the agency is the records 

retention. PWB is ready for this aspect as Rodney has created a database where all the Facebook posts 

and Tweets and RSS feeds are stored. The Agency is very close to finalizing their Social Media Policy so the 

Board agreed to wait until next meeting before discussing the specifics further. 

PWB Academy: The Academy was well received by the attendees. It was suggested that Council Members 

should be targeted and possibly getting on the AWA Conference for some sessions.  

   

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

January 11, 2012
Board Meeting

19



PWB Communications Committee Meeting 
12‐4‐2012 
 

KEY 

→  Item needs follow‐up action 

Name  Person responsible for the assignment 

 

→ 4‐Pager Communication document 

Staff needs to update the 4‐pager per changes requested by the committee and decisions coming from 

the December Board meeting and email document to committee members ‐ Cecilia/Dawn 

 

Agenda Items for next meeting 

 Website review 

 Social Media Policy 

 

 

 

 

20



 

Date: January 10, 2013 

To: Public Works Board 

From: Ann Campbell, Board Staff 

Subject: PWB Policy Committee Notes for December 4, 2012 

7:30-8:45 

Attendees: 

Board Members   Staff 

Don Montfort    Ann Campbell 

Jerry Cummins    Dawn Eychaner 

Tom Fitzsimmons    Isaac Huang 

JC Baldwin    

 

Action items: 

None 

 Review/Revise Agenda 

No changes to the agenda as presented. 

Review/Revise PWB Policy Bill and approve to move to full Board 

Staff presented stakeholder comments which resulted from a meeting held on 10/23/12 to gather input on 

the draft legislation. The following substantive issues were identified by stakeholders and staff as needing 

further review by the policy committee and board: 

1. Ports as an eligible applicant – Members discussed adding Public Ports (Ports) as eligible entities for 

funding.  The following issues were discussed: 

a. Ports as economic development engines as opposed to being basic infrastructure providers 

b. Ports as partners with existing eligible entities 

c. Ports’ credit worthiness assisting an eligible entity with credit challenges 

 

Outcomes:  Do not include Ports as an eligible entity; do encourage Ports to partner with existing eligible 

entities for funding opportunities to access the Public Works Assistance Account 

 

2. Authority to refinance – Members discussed language in Section 4, item (912) which modifies the 

existing language to allow for the refinancing of federal loans.  The following issues were discussed: 

a. USDA sought modification to the precise language as making funding available will not directly 

impact the acquisition of federal funding; 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
January 11, 2012 

Board Meeting 

21



b. Lack of job creation due to re-financing existing loan projects 

 

Outcomes:  Committee chair to provide draft language to staff based on discussions with USDA; 

Committee to bring forth discussion to Board 

 

3. Clarification on Traditional and Non-Traditional – Members discussed the meaning and timing of the 

inclusion of non-traditional systems when funding: 

a. The timing of when adding non-traditional systems to the eligibility pool is unclear:  Calendar 

year 2014 for the loan list year 2016 

b. The bill fails to include Pre-Construction and Energy funding programs for the non-traditional 

systems.  It is not clear why these two programs are not extended to the non-traditional 

systems. 

Outcomes:  Include Pre-Construction and Energy loan programs to the funding programs available to 

non-traditional systems.  The non-traditional systems will be enacted starting August 1, 2014  for loan 

list year 2016. 

Review/Revise/Adopt Committee Charter 

This agenda item has been tabled for review at the December 2012 committee meeting. 

Public Works By-Laws 

This agenda item has been tabled for review at the December 2012 committee meeting.  

22



D R A F T Public Works Board  

Technical Assistance Committee Meeting Notes 

December 4, 2012 
In Attendance: 

Stan Finkelstein – Board Chair 

Steve Stuart – TA Committee Chair, Board Member 

Bubba Scott – Board Member 

Darwin Smith – Board Member  

Larry Waters – Board Member  

John LaRocque – Executive Director, Public Works Board (PWB) 

Cathi Read – Small Communities Initiative, Commerce 

Myra Baldini – PWB Staff 

Steve Dunk – PWB Staff   

Lynn Kohn – PWB Staff 

Bruce Lund – PWB Staff 

Jacki Skaught – PWB Staff 

Terry Dale – PWB Staff 

Chris Gagnon – PWB Staff 
 

Notes 

Item: Next Steps: 

November 2nd meeting notes: 

• Approved  

 

Debrief on Southwest Academy: 

• The event was successful, good opportunity to partner with other 

agencies, associations, and the new agency transition 

• The committee suggested staff consideration for doing more than 

four academies per year 

• The next academy is being planned for late February in NW area 

(Whatcom, Snohomish, Skagit, Island, San Juan counties) 

• Palouse, Yakima, NE academies to follow 

Staff brief committee on evaluation 

results for SW Academy 

 

Staff recommendation on number of 

academies to offer 

 

Staff update on NW Academy: 

Date, location, agenda, speakers 

Draft TA Proposal: 

• Bruce presented the proposal, which utilizes existing staff and 

funding. 

• It will be good for PWB to present the proposal at stakeholders 

conferences and workshops to determine areas that PWB can assist 

with. 

• When connecting with agencies and stakeholders, identify gaps, 

partnerships with existing work, and avoid stepping on toes. 

• Add a column for training that CSRs will need to carry out the work. 

Add a column for staff training 

 

Bring proposal to full board in January 

Committee Charter: 

• Tabled 

 

Next Meeting: 

• 7:30 a.m., prior to January 16 board meeting 

 

 

 

23



 

24



 

 

 
Date: January 16, 2013 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Bruce Lund, CSR Manager 
 
Subject: Technical Assistance Plan 
 
 
 

--------Materials will be distributed at the Board meeting--------- 
 

 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
January 16, 2013 

Board Meeting 

25



 

26



TAB 3 

Contracting 

27



 

28



6/20/12 

 

DATE:  December 19, 2012 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Project Completion Extension Requests 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends extending the contract project completion dates as follows:  
 

Program 
 

Client Contract No. Project 
Loan/Grant 

Amount 
Available to 

Draw  

Original 
Closeout 

Date  

Current 
Closeou

t Date 

Proposed 
Closeout 

Date 

DWSRF City of 
Sunnyside 

04-65104-035 Sunnyside Water 
Source 

Development 
Project 

$4,040,000 $1,503,286.33 09/02/08 01/01/13 01/01/14 

Reason for Extension Request:  An earlier change in scope required a re-evaluation of the environmental review.  
The review took longer than anticipated due to significant changes in City and Engineering staffing.  Additional 
time is needed to complete the final phase of construction.  Project is 85% complete. 
 
 

 

DWSRF City of 
Toppenish 

DM07-952-031 Well No. 9 $2,891,327 $1,947,646.09 8/18/11 02/18/13 05/31/14 

Reason for Extension Request:  Testing determined the well drilled did not meet project contract specifications.  
The well has been re-drilled.  Additional time is needed to construct the pump house.  Project is 50% complete. 
 
 

 

PWTF Grays 
Harbor 
County 
Water 

District No 
1 

PW-07-962-012 Water System 
Rehabilitation 

Project 

$6,717,575 $2,015,272.50 05/29/11 5/31/13 05/31/14 

Reason for Extension Request: Unforeseen County road improvements have triggered the need to stabilize the 
main distribution artery between the reservoir and the pump house.  Additional time is needed to complete design 
and construction.  Project is 90% complete. 
 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
The clients have requested extension to their project completion dates. Staff evaluated the requests through a staff peer 
review process. DOH has been consulted and agrees with extending the DWSRF projects. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

January 15, 2013 
Board meeting  

 

29



 

30



 

 
DATE: January 7, 2013 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: CAU Contract Status Report 
 
 
Beginning October 2012, we began providing a quarterly report to the Public Works Board that offers a 
snapshot of common activities carried out by CAU.  We hope this gives the Board a better understanding of the 
work that occurs after contract execution. 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 10/1/2012 – 12/31/2012 
 
PWTF      16 
DWSRF     16 
Other PWB Programs      5 
Total       37 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 12/31/2012 
 
PWTF     158 
DWSRF    130 
Other PWB Programs     16 
Total      304 
 
Number of Projects Completed 10/1/2012 - 12/31/2012 
 
PWTF        6 
DWSRF       7 
Other PWB Programs       3 
Total      16  
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 10/1/2012 - 12/31/2012 
 
PWTF    $23,234,181 
DWSRF   $  5,310,493 
Other PWB Programs  $     133,221 
Total    $28,677,895 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

January 15, 2013 
Board meeting  

 

31



 

32



TAB 4 

Program Development/ 

Implementation Updates 

33



 

34



 

 

 
Date: January 16, 2013 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Policy and Program Development Manager 
 
Subject: Proposed Loan Terms for FY 2015 
 
BACKGROUND: Loan terms are reviewed annually for relevance and effectiveness.  Loan terms are approved 
by the Public Works Board (Board) prior to the commencement of the Construction review cycle.   
 
STATUS UPDATE: Board staff propose keeping the same rates and terms as last cycle as identified in the 
table below. 

 
LOAN TERMS (PROPOSED) 

Loan Limit: $2 million per jurisdiction 
Applicants that applied and received funding in the FY 2014 cycle will be eligible to apply. 

Local match 
requirement:   

None 

Interest terms & 
rates:  
 

The following table represents the terms available.  Interest rates are set by the term. 

Term Interest rate 

10 years  
15 years 
20 years 
25 years 
30 years 

0.5% 
0.75% 
1% 
1.5% 
2% 

Adjustment 
available to the 
above interest 
rates: 
 

Loan recipients may “buy-down” the above interest rates under the following conditions: 
(Note:  Per Board policy, no loan may have an interest rate of less than 0.25%) 

1. Loan recipients with an Affordability 
Index (AI) of 2.01% to 2.5% may reduce 
their interest rate by 0.25% 

Example:   
A town with an AI of 2.3% wants a 25-year loan.  
They qualify to have the interest rate reduced to 
1.25%. 

(25 years at 1.5% Less 0.25% = 25 year term at 
1.25%) 

2. Loan recipients with an AI of 2.6% or 
more may reduce their interest rate by 
0.50% 

Example:   
A town with an AI of 2.3% wants a 25-year loan.  
They qualify to have the interest rate reduced to 
1.25%. 
(25 years at 1.5% less 0.25% = 25 year term at 
1.25%) 

 

LOAN PARAMETERS AI of 2% or less AI from 2.01% to 2.5% AI of 2.51% or more 

Local Match Minimum None None None 

Interest terms & rates:  

 

Term in years 

(length of Loan)
Interest Rate 

10 years 0.5% 

15 years 0.75% 

20 years 1% 

25 years 1.5% 

30 years 2% 

 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
January 16, 2013 

Board Meeting 

35



 

 

INCENTIVE DEVICES (PROPOSED) 

NOTE:  Clients have a 60-month (5 years) window to complete the scope of work outlined in their contract documents. 

Project 

completed 

early: 

 

Completion timeframe Incentive 

48 months 
Repayment period (after contract execution) is increased 

by 2 years* 

OR 

36 months 

3. Interest rate is decreased by 0.25%**                 

Repayment period is increased by 5 years* 

- OR - 

Interest rate is decreased by 0.5%** 

 *The repayment period cannot exceed the life of the asset being constructed. 

**The Board adopted a minimum interest rate of 0.25% during the loan rate and term 

discussions in Spring 2011. 

 

Achievements upon project completion: 

1. Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification 

• Buildings/structures qualify for LEED certification 

• Buildings/structures receive LEED Silver certification 

• Buildings/structures receive LEED Gold certification 

• Buildings/structures receive LEED Platinum certification 

2. Quality of effluent/biosolids upon project completion/system in use is Class A 

3. Increase in connection capacity (infilling and existing area rather than expanding) 

4. Local government assumes control/ownership of a private system 

5. Documented reduction in either water use or water loss 

6. Implementation of IGEA recommendations 

7. Project results in a regionalized system 

4.  

 
 

 

 

36



TAB 5 

Information and 

Other Items 

37



 

38




